UNITED
NATIONS E

. . Distr.

Economic and Social GENERAL

Council E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 5
16 May 1997
ENGLI SH

Original: FRENCH

COWM TTEE ON ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS
Si xt eent h sessi on
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 5t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 30 April 1997, at 10 a.m

Chai rperson: M. ALSTON

CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT

Initial report of Guyana

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the neetings of the Conmttee at this
session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued shortly
after the end of the session

GE. 97- 16314 (E)



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR 5
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.15 a.m

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS (agenda item 7)

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT

Initial report of Guyana (E/ 1990/5/Add.27; HRI/CORE. 1/ Add. 61
E/ C. 12/ Q GUY/ 1; E/C. 12/ CAl 28)

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, M. Brewster (Guyana) took a place

at the Commttee table.

2. M . BREWSTER (Guyana) rem nded nenbers that Guyana had not been able to
submt its initial report until 1995, despite the nunmerous efforts made by the
Guyanese authorities to subnmit it earlier. He welconed the opportunity which
hi s Government had been given to send witten replies to the questions raised
by the Committee's pre-sessional working group to supplenment the report. His
Governnment had conmitted itself to ensuring observance of the human rights of
the peopl e of Guyana and, since the subm ssion of its report in 1995, had
unremttingly striven to inprove living and working conditions.

3. The m ni num daily wage had been regularly increased in 1996 and 1997.
Wth regard to the fam |y, the Governnent had established a policy ainmed at

i nprovi ng the status of wonen and strengthening famly links. Several |aws
had been enacted on that question, notably the 1995 Abortion Act which was
designed to ensure the greater well-being of wonen, and the 1996 Act relating
to donmestic violence. 1In the area of housing, the Governnent was endeavouring
to find solutions to facilitate home ownership by persons with | ow i ncones.

In the area of health, a new nobile health unit had been set up in 1995,
thanks to the assistance of the international comunity, but its effectiveness
was being inpeded by the |ack of qualifications of staff. For that reason the
M nistry of Health had recently set up training progranmes for specialized
heal t h workers

4, Despite the difficulties entailed by econonic globalization for snal
countries, which were still affected by the debt problem his Governnment

remai ned committed to fulfilment of the international obligations it had
assumed, and in particular to the realization of econom c, social and cultura
rights.

5. In reply to M. Kouznetsov, who wi shed to know the rate of the Cuyanese
dollar to the United States dollar so as to be able to understand the val ue of
the financial indicators given in the report, he said that one United States
dol l ar was worth approxi mtely 140 Cuyanese dol | ars.

6. M. WMER said that the docunents received did not contain replies to
all the questions asked by the Cormittee. He observed that it was preferable
not to ask States parties to provide further statistics while their report was
bei ng consi der ed.

7. M. SADI said he was sure that the Guyanese Governnent was taking its
obl i gati ons under the Covenant seriously but would like to know why it had not



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR 5
page 3

sent experts to assist M. Brewster in answering the Commttee's questions.
He woul d al so wel conme clarification of the status of the Covenant in Guyanese
| egi sl ati on.

8. M s. BONOAN- DANDAN t hanked M. Brewster for updating the information
provided to the Cormittee, notably with regard to the situation of wonen. She
woul d I'i ke to know what neasures had been taken by the Governnent to publicize
t he Covenant, since the report contained no information on that point.
According to the core docunent, workshops and senminars were organi zed by the
Government and NGOs in order to nake the rights of the child better known, but
no nention was nmade of economc, social and cultural rights. She would
therefore like clarification of what M. Brewster nmeant when he stated that
Guyana was taking its obligations under the Covenant seriously.

9. M. TEXIER, reverting to a question already asked in the witten
guestions on paragraph 8 of the report, wondered whether, since the tinme when
Guyana had ratified the Covenant, national |egislation had been reviewed in
order to bring it into line with the Covenant's provisions if such had not
been the case. He would also like to know how the report of Guyana had been
prepared, and nore particularly whether the NGOs participating in the work of
the Inter-Agency Pernanent Committee on Human Rights set up by the Government
had been genuinely associated with the drafting of the report and whet her
Guyana intended to take steps to nmake the Conmittee's work better known.

10. M. AHMED asked the representative of Guyana to what extent the measures
to alleviate his country's public debt granted by the United Ki ngdom and by
the Paris Club creditors (see secretariat note E/C 12/ CA/ 28) had facilitated
the restructuring of the national econony.

11. M. THAPALI A said he would wel cone statistics on trends in the main
denogr aphi ¢ and soci o-econom ¢ indicators over the past five years and on the
share of the national budget allocated to health, education and cul ture.

12. M. RATTRAY, noting that articles 138 to 151 of the Constitution

menti oned in paragraph 8 of the initial report (E 1995/ Add.27) concerned only
civil and political rights, asked whether sone of the economc, social and
cultural rights established in articles 122 to 129 of the Constitution had
been invoked in the courts and been the subject of court decisions. He would
al so li ke the Guyanese Government to answer the question concerning the
drafting of an optional protocol asked in question 5 of the list of issues
(BE/C 12/Q AUY/1). Lastly, he asked whether the Governnment had prepared a
short- or long-termplan, or a tinetable, with a viewto the realization of

t hose rights.

13. M. BREWSTER (CGuyana) expressed regret that his Governnment had been
unable to send to CGeneva a del egation of experts to help himto reply to the
Committee's questions. Sending such a del egati on woul d have been very
expensi ve, and he suggested that it m ght be nore econonical to use

vi deo- conf erenci ng or audi o-conferencing techniques. As to the status of the
Covenant within the donestic legal order (E/C 12/ Q QUY/1, para. 2), he
requested the Cormittee to refer to the appendix relating to that question in
the witten replies (docunment wi thout a synbol distributed at the neeting).
Al international treaties nust be translated into national |egislation by




E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR 5
page 4

Parliament. Sone rights such as the right to enploynent, health care, etc.
were not fundamental rights that could be invoked in the courts, but nerely
statements of principle or ideals. On the question whether sone of the rights
referred to by M. Rattray had been invoked in the courts, he would have to
seek details fromthe authorities. He would also have to inquire about his
Governnment's position on the drafting of an optional protocol

14. Al t hough there was no plan geared to the realization of econom c, socia
and cultural rights, his Governnment was currently working on an economnic
devel opnent strategy which would define targets in various social areas
(health care, enploynent and equality). He would seek fuller information on
the subject fromhis Governnment if the Committee so wished. He would al so

i nquire whether the legislation in force or under preparation was
systematically vetted in the light of the provisions of the Covenant. As to
the participation of NGOs in the Inter-Agency Permanent Conmmittee on Human
Ri ghts, the publicity given to econom c, social and cultural rights, and the
denogr aphi ¢ and soci o-econom ¢ statistics requested, he referred nenbers of
the Committee to the appendices of the witten response.

15. On the question of debt alleviation, he said that 13 bilateral creditors
had recently granted his country a debt reduction. It was partly through
those all eviation measures that CGuyana had been able to increase substantially
the share of social expenditure, notably on health and education. However,
even t hough part of the debt had been witten off, the country still had to
repay the interest on the remaining debt. The international econonic
environnent reduced the Governnent's room for nmanoeuvre in relation to the
realization of economic, social and cultural rights, but those rights were in
no way being called in question

16. The CHAI RPERSON requested the secretariat to distribute the rel evant
statistics and to supplenent them if necessary, with the data contained in
UNDP' s Human Devel opnent Report.

| npl enentation of articles 1 to 5

17. Ms. BONOAN- DANDAN sai d she would like to receive precise replies to
questions 10 (rights of the Amerindian popul ation) and 11 (situation of
non-nationals) on the list of issues (E/C 12/ Q GUY/1).

18. M. MARCHAN ROMERO sai d he too considered that the reply to the question
about the rights of the Amerindian popul ati on was unsati sfactory. The
Committee wished to know what the actual situation of that minority was,
particularly in view of the disturbing information on the Anmerindi an Act
contained in the note by the secretariat (E/ C. 12/ CA/28). He would al so

wel come details on the parlianentary conm ttee appointed to recomend
revisions to that Act.

19. M. GRISSA observed that the statistical tables contained in the
appendi x were of little use to the Committee.

20. The CHAI RPERSON sai d he had asked the secretariat to distribute
statistics produced by the Inter-American Devel opnment Bank (I1DB), which were
interesting but did not contain data on poverty and health.




E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR 5
page 5

21. M . ADEKUOYE asked whether it was true that the provisions of the
Arer i ndi an Act were not generally inplemented and how it was that that Act had
not been considered unconstitutional. Did the Anerindians have the right to
exploit their own natural resources? And did they receive appropriate
conpensation fromthe conpanies to which concessions had been awarded?

22. M. TEXI ER observed that the initial report and witten replies of the
Guyanese Government did not contain specific data, notably on the situation of
the Amerindians, their rights, their access to econom c wealth, the use of
their | anguage, education, etc. He also wi shed to know whether, in practice,
equal ity between nmen and wonmen existed with regard to not only renuneration
but al so access to senior posts. He drew the delegation's attention to the
need to provide specific details on the questions concerning each article of
the Covenant and, if necessary, on the difficulties encountered in

i mpl enenting it.

23. M. W MER considered that the problemderived fromthe fact that the
replies given in the initial report (E/ 1990/5/Add.27) were brief and
insufficient, and cited paragraphs 10 and 12 of that report by way of exanple.
Vi ch rights were not enjoyed by foreigners? Wich rights were duly protected
by the Covenant and which were not?

24. M. CEAUSU shared M. Wner's concern about paragraph 12 of the initial
report. In that connection, he noted that the witten reply to question 11 of
the Iist of issues (E/C 12/Q CUY/1) referred only to the specific regine
covering nationals of certain countries with which Guyana had specia

rel ati ons (CARICOM Comonwealth). The Governnent shoul d have given details
concerning the general reginme applicable to foreigners lawfully resident in
Guyana, notably concerning the right to work, social security and trade union
freedom It was inportant to know whether non-nationals benefited fromthe

| aws and enjoyed the freedons proclaimed in the Covenant.

25. M . BREWSTER (Guyana) said that, after having heard the questions asked
and the observati ons made by nenbers of the Committee, he had a better
under st andi ng of what they expected. He would ask his Governnent to give a
nore detail ed response to the questions concerning the Amerindi an popul ation -
i ncluding statistical data and specific facts, the ethnic mnorities and
non-nationals in Guyana. The latter did not constitute a significant
proportion of the population; nost non-nationals worked for regional or other
organi zations established in Guyana. It should not be difficult to provide
updat ed statistical data on subjects such as poverty, health, etc.

26. As to the place occupied in the national |egal order by the

i nternational human rights instrunments in general and the Internationa
Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights in particular, reference
shoul d be nmade to the rel evant appendi x which had been sent to the
secretari at.

27. The CHAI RPERSON said that a detailed note on that point would be
distributed to menbers of the Conmittee.

28. M. CRISSA asked what was neant by a significant proportion of the
popul ation. In any event, the realization of rights was not neasured in



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR 5
page 6

quantitative terms. And on the basis of what criteria was a person deenmed
undesi rabl e under the Expul sion of Undesirables Act, mentioned in paragraph 11
of the report (E 1990/5/Add. 27)7?

29. M s. BONOAN- DANDAN sai d she would like to have fuller information on the
attention given to econonic, social and cultural rights conpared, for exanple,
with other categories of rights, such as civil and political rights and the
rights of the child.

30. In connection with questions 9 to 12 relating to article 2 of the
Covenant, the information contained in the witten response was too brief and
did not give nmenbers of the Conmttee a precise idea of the legislative
provisions in force on non-discrimnation, particularly in relation to wonen,
el derly persons, mnors, disabled persons and persons suffering from Al DS

31. She woul d al so wel cone details of the reconmendations referred to on
page 2 of the witten response.

32. M. SADI asked whether affirmative-action neasures were or would be
taken to pronote equality between men and wonmen. WAs CGuyana in favour of the
establishnent of a quota systemfor achieving that objective?

33. M. CEVILLE noted that neither the report of CGuyana nor the witten
response contai ned specific information showi ng that the primry education
secondary education, higher education and basic education provided in Guyana
were consistent with the requirenents of the Covenant.

34. M . BREWSTER (Guyana) replied that the rights of non-nationals were
guaranteed on the sane basis as those of the population as a whole. The
question of the dissem nation of the Covenant had been dealt with in genera
terms but, if the Conmttee so wished, fuller information could be provided in
due course. No affirmative action was taken to pronote equality between men
and wonen, and there was no quota system

35. Good progress was being made in the realization of the right to
education: primary education and secondary education were free of charge.

Hi gher education was no | onger free, but students were eligible for

schol arships. In prinmary education, 8 per cent of children were not enrolled;
t he percentage was higher in secondary education

36. M_. SADI asked whether econom c planning officials in Guyana endeavoured
to prepare their plans in the Iight of the principles set out in the Covenant.

37. M. ADEKUOYE, referring to the equal enjoynent of econom c, social and
cultural rights by nen and wonmen, asked whet her nmeasures were taken to ensure
that women received equal pay for equal work. On another point, what was the
situation of battered wonen?

38. Ms. BONOAN- DANDAN said it was inportant that an answer should be given
to question 9 on the |list of issues. She asked whether the publication on the
devel opnent of the situation of wonen in Guyana from 1980 to 1993 coul d be
made available to nenbers of the Conmmittee.




E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR 5
page 7

39. M. PILLAY asked whether article 29 of the Constitution, which

prohi bited any form of discrimnnation agai nst wonmen on grounds of sex, could
be invoked in the courts, and nore precisely whether the Guyanese H gh Court
and Court of Appeal had established any case |aw on the question. Wre there
al so provisions guaranteeing the rights of children born out of wedl ock?

40. M . BREWSTER (Guyana) replied that to his know edge no cases relating to
the rights of wonen or the rights of children born out of wedl ock had cone
before the courts. Fuller information on the question would be sent to the
Conmittee shortly. And as far as he knew, there were no simlar provisions
concerning di sabl ed persons or the other categories nmentioned in question 9.

41. On the other hand, account was taken of econom c, social and cultura
rights in the fornulation of economi c strategy. The problem which arose was
not that of the recognition of those rights, but that of their specific
realization: how, for exanple, to make full enployment or access to decent
health care available to all

42. On the question of violence against wonen, statistics could be
conmuni cated to nmenbers of the Conmittee

43. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO asked how, in the absence of a constitutiona
court, the Guyanese Governnent coul d guarantee that the Constitution was
respected. She also wished to know whether there was any |egislation that

di scri m nated agai nst wonen. Lastly, the Conmittee would like to receive the
clarification requested in question 14 of the list of issues.

44, M. GRISSA said he was anxious to know whet her the questions to which no
i mredi ate answer could be given would be answered in due course.

45. M s. BONOAN- DANDAN asked what neasures the CGovernnment was taking to dea
with the problens of violence against wonen and children and, in general
violence within the famly?

| npl enentation of articles 6 and 7

46. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO sai d that the appendi ces nentioned by
M. Brewster did not constitute replies to the Commttee's questions.

47. The CHAI RPERSON agreed and asked to what extent the data contained in
appendi x 2, for exanple, constituted replies to the questions on enpl oynent
and unenpl oynent .

48. M. PILLAY suggested that, in |lieu of appendices, the drafters of
reports should provide precise data in a single paragraph. He drew attention
to the obligation on countries to endeavour to give precise replies to the
Committee's questions.

49. The CHAI RPERSON said that, in his view, it was pointless to continue
consideration of the inplenentation of articles 6 and 7, since there were no
precise replies to the rel evant questions.




E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR 5
page 8

50. M. GRISSA said he wished to enphasize two problens relating to

articles 6 and 7. The first concerned the vague and i nconpl ete nature of the
data relating to enployment and unenploynent. And the second concerned
wor ki ng conditions, notably in the bauxite and gold m nes. Wat was the state
of health of the workers concerned? And what neasures were taken to protect

t hent?

51. M. CEAUSU, reverting to paragraph 30 of the report relating to the
Cccupational Safety and Health Division, one of whose tasks was to inspect
wor kpl aces, asked for details on the powers of inspectors fromthat Division
Were they authorized to inpose fines and to order the closure of a work site
whi ch was consi dered dangerous or had been the scene of accidents? The
Government shoul d have given statistics on the frequency of such inspections
and the effectiveness of the systens set up to protect workers.

52. The CHAI RPERSON said that two courses were open to the Commttee. It
could continue to ask questions indicating the areas where the replies given
wer e i nadequate and see whether M. Brewster could supply details the next
day. O it could term nate consideration of the report, adopt prelimnary
observations and seek to obtain further information in due course. The
docunent ati on avail abl e could not enhance the di al ogue between the Comm ttee
and the representative of Guyana.

53. M. WMER favoured the second solution. Asking further questions would
not advance the work of the Committee and woul d amount to putting M. Brewster
through a kind of torture session. Although the docunentation provi ded was
unquestionably insufficient, the Committee did have sufficient information to
take stock of the situation, after which it could turn to another subject.

54. M . CEAUSU considered that the Committee should continue to ask
guestions and make observations on the paragraphs of the report. M. Brewster
woul d thus be able to take note of the Committee's concerns and either respond
to themor informthe authorities in his country.

55. M. BREWSTER (CGuyana) said that the replies to some questions could be
obt ai ned quickly. He considered that the exchange of views with the nmenbers
of the Committee had been useful, since he was now in a position to informhis
Governnment of the nature of the replies expected by the Cormittee. 1In his

opi nion, the persons responsible for the preparation of the report should have
had consultations with the secretariat, so as to be able to give the replies
expected by the Commttee.

56. M. TEXI ER pointed out that a | engthy docunent had been prepared,
stating what was expected of Governnents, nanely, information on the state of

| egi sl ation, a nodicum of statistical information, and a description of the
actual situation with regard to economc, social and cultural rights. The
Conmittee was in an inpasse, for |ack of satisfactory replies on severa

i nportant points, notably enploynent, unenpl oynent and purchasing power. In
his view, further witten information was essential in order to ascertain the
actual status of economic, social and cultural rights and their inplenmentation
vis-a-vis the nost vul nerabl e sectors of the popul ation.



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR 5
page 9

57. Ms. BONOAN- DANDAN sai d she appreciated M. Brewster's difficulties but
nonet hel ess considered it unnecessary to give Governnents any assi stance since
the questions asked were straightforward and direct. G ving the answers was
simply a question of political will. She proposed that the Conmttee should
adhere to its usual practice.

58. M. GRISSA expressed regret at the inconpetence or conplete
irresponsibility of the persons who had drafted the replies before the
Committee. He proposed that the dialogue with M. Brewster should be
conti nued pending the recei pt of nore conplete replies.

59. M . ADEKUOYE shared the view of nenbers who wanted the dial ogue to
continue and the representative of CGuyana to be given time to obtain further
i nformati on.

60. M. W MER suggested that M. Brewster should request his Mnistry of
Foreign Affairs to transnmt to the Conmittee a new docunent containing nore
precise replies to the questions asked and describing the actual status of
econom c, social and cultural rights in Guyana.

61. M . BREWSTER (Guyana) said he doubted that the replies to such conpl ex
guestions coul d be obtai ned overnight. Although replies could be obtained to
t he questions of a statistical nature, the answers to the others would take

| onger to prepare and necessitate consultations with different mnistries.

62. The CHAI RPERSON, summarizing the deliberations, considered it pointless
to continue the dial ogue and expressed serious doubt that replies could be
obtained fromone day to the next. The State party had neverthel ess di spl ayed
a nmeasure of goodwill and the Conmittee could expect to receive additiona

i nformati on. He proposed that the Cormittee should send to the Governnent of
Guyana a letter containing a list of matters pending and, possibly, additiona
guestions and a detail ed description of its working methods. The Governnent
woul d be invited to send a delegation to the Commttee's next session and to
prepare witten replies well in advance, failing which the Comrittee would
adopt stringent and detail ed concl udi ng observati ons.

63. M. BREWSTER (CGuyana), endorsing that action, said he would Iike to know
t he shortcom ngs which the Cormittee had found in the replies given, so as to
be able to inform his Governnent.

64. The CHAI RPERSON requested the country rapporteur to go through the list
of issues, identify the shortcom ngs and indicate what additional information
was needed.

The neeting rose at 1.05 p. m




